
PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 1 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
April 22 & 24, 2019 
Meeting Action Summary 
______________________________________________________________________ 
April 22, 2019 – 6:30 p.m. 
Commissioners present: Ashworth, Butler, Carpenter, Carttar, Paden, Sands, Sinclair, Struckhoff, 
Weaver, Willey 
Staff present: McCullough, Crick, Ewert, Mortensen 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
GENERAL BUSINESS 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
No reports to receive from committees. 
 
 
 
COMMUNICATIONS/ EX PARTE / ABSTENTIONS / DEFERRAL REQUEST 

• Receive written communications from staff, Planning Commissioners, or other commissioners. 
Scott McCullough reminded Planning Commission about their May 8, 2019 Mid-Month 
meeting at Akin Prairie.  

• No ex parte. 
• No abstentions. 

 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
No general public comment. 
 

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/


PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 2 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

PC Minutes 4/22/19 
ITEM NO. 1  VARIANCE FOR 1520 KENTUCKY ST (LRM) 
 
Variance from lot width, frontage, and lot area associated with Minor Subdivision, MS-19-00082, 
Shenouda Kentucky Addition, located at 1520 Kentucky St. Submitted by Landplan Engineering, PA, 
for Victor M. Shenouda and Margrit N. Yousef, property owners of record. 
 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Luke Mortensen presented the item. 
 
APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
CL Maurer, Landplan Engineering, was present for questions.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
No public comment.  
 
COMMISSION DISCUSSION 
Commissioner Willey asked if the existing building would be removed. 
 
Mortensen said the structure would be removed and a detached dwelling would be added on each 
lot.  
 
ACTION TAKEN 
Motioned by Commissioner Struckhoff, seconded by Commissioner Weaver, to approve the variance 
requested for a minor subdivision, MS-19-00082, required per Section 20-810(a)(2)(i) for Lot 2 
Shenouda Kentucky Addition to reduce lot width from 40 feet to 35.32 feet, to reduce lot frontage 
from 40 feet to 35.32 feet, and to reduce lot area from 5,000 square feet to 4,388 square feet in 
accordance with the provisions per Section 20-813(g) of the Land Development Code for the 
property located at 1520 Kentucky Street. 
 

Unanimously approved 10-0. Commissioners Ashworth, Butler, Carpenter, Carttar, Paden, 
Sands, Sinclair, Struckhoff, Weaver, and Willey voted in favor. 

 
 
 

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/


PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 3 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

PC Minutes 4/22/19 
ITEM NO.  2 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2040 
 
Continue discussion regarding the Comprehensive Plan 2040 for unincorporated Douglas County and 
the city of Lawrence. Topic discussion will include Growth & Development and Lawrence 
Neighborhoods & Housing.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Pennie von Achen suggested the following changes: 
Chapter 2, Growth & Development: 
Page 12, Goal 1: 1.2 ‘Seek conservation of identified Conserve sensitive lands and other identifiable 
natural resources that define Douglas County’s rural character.’ 
Page 13: ‘While growth has traditionally been generally is considered to be good because it expands 
the tax base, accommodates an increasing population and involves more people in the political 
processes, it also has significant environmental as well as can have financial implications for the 
community.’ 
Page 18, Goal 3, 2.9: ‘Development shall not be permitted on regulatory floodplains or other 
environmentally sensitive areas in the area this section is talking about.’ 
Page 25, Goal 5, 5.1: ‘Existing commercial areas at the intersection of a hard-surfaced County route 
and designated highway may be allowed limited expansions expand if utilities and infrastructure are 
available and if the expansion is compatible with surrounding uses.’ 
Page 25, Goal 5, 5.2: ‘Allow limited new commercial developments to serve rural communities at an 
appropriate scale where infrastructure can support the intensity of the development.’ 
Chapter 3, Lawrence Neighborhoods & Housing: 
Page 40, Goal 4, 4.8: ‘Incorporate pocket parks and green spaces into new neighborhood 
developments that encourage connectivity and green corridors. Where possible leave some 
greenspace natural to provide habitat and wild spaces for children to explore and learn.’ 
 
Danielle Davey, Lawrence Board of Realtors, said the community benefit mandate would make 
housing more expensive and counterproductive of the progress and ideas from other groups. She 
encouraged Planning Commission not to take final action on Plan 2040 until the Affordable Housing 
Advisory Board had an opportunity to weigh in on how the community benefit policy may affect its 
work on affordable housing in Lawrence.  
 
Bobbie Flory, Lawrence Homebuilders Association, said she felt the word ‘shall’ should be removed 
from the community benefit language. She said she did not know what ‘unmistakably Lawrence’ 
meant in Chapter 3, Lawrence Neighborhoods & Housing, Goal 4, 4.1 and what direction it was 
supposed to give. She said in Goal 4, 4.3 she did not know what ‘human scale’ meant. She said 
regarding Goal 5, 5.5 that references ‘universal design’ she did not know what that would add to the 
already outstanding building codes. She wondered if it was a relevant policy. 
 
Thad Holcombe felt project scoring criteria was a great way to approach projects. He said he would 
love to see another goal added that would include preserving and protecting areas that are 
ecologically sensitive to advancement by growth.  
 
Courtney Shipley, Lawrence Association of Neighborhoods, said she would like to see Section 4 
divided into two separate areas where there is a difference between newly developed areas and 
older neighborhoods. She also expressed concern about parking. She suggested adequate off-street 

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/


PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 4 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

parking be added to the wording. She agreed with Bobbie Flory’s comment about human scale and 
not knowing what it means. 
 
Nick Kuzmyack said some of the neighborhood chapter seems to conflict each other by using such 
language as ‘preserve’ and ‘enhance.’ He said change and stasis were at odds with each other.  
 
COMMISSION DISCUSSION 
Planning Commission started their discussion on page 23, Chapter 2, Growth & Development. 
 
Commissioner Sands suggested adding the definition of human scale in the sidebar. 
 
Commissioner Willey said they would discuss that topic with Chapter 3.  
 
Commissioner Sinclair asked if the capitalized phrase ‘Downtown Lawrence’ used in the plan meant 
Massachusetts Street. He inquired about an agenda item Planning Commission saw recently to 
expand the definition of downtown Lawrence across the river.  
 
Crick said a recent comprehensive plan amendment extended Downtown Lawrence north across the 
river. He said historically the comprehensive plan defined downtown as New Hampshire to Vermont 
from South Park to the river. He said it could ebb and flow as downtown changes so it did not have 
a locked-in prescribed boundary. 
 
Commissioner Willey recommended Chapter 2, Goal 5, have a sub heading for home businesses with 
sub points: 

• Review and revise the home business rules for city and county to encourage entrepreneurs 
and startups.  

• Ensure an appeal process. 
• City and County offer opportunities for a business to scale up.  

 
McCullough said the language was getting very specific. He suggested possibly refining the first point 
since the appeal process would come much later. 
 
Commissioner Carpenter said the comprehensive plan was tracking at a higher level what was 
already in the Development Code.  
 
Commissioner Willey said Pennie von Achen spoke about Goal 5, Rural Commercial. Commissioner 
Willey said the availability of utility and infrastructure was a pretty natural limitation on most rural 
commercial opportunities. She said rural commercial was popular in rural areas because there were 
so very few public spaces. She was comfortable with the language in the draft plan. 
 
Commissioner Carpenter suggested adding language on page 25, Goal 5, 5.1:  
5.1 ‘Existing commercial areas at the intersection of a hard-surfaced County route and designated 
highway may expand if utilities and infrastructure are available and if the expansion is compatible in 
scale with surrounding uses.’ 
 
Commissioner Ashworth said she didn’t see language in commercial development regarding impact 
on water resources, impervious surface, or greenhouse gas emissions.  
 
McCullough said one of the policy recommendations was the climate protection plan.  

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/


PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 5 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

 
Commissioner Willey asked if the future climate protection plan would be incorporated by reference. 
 
McCullough said that was correct. He said it would be incorporated into the appendix. 
 
Commissioner Ashworth said the climate plan was only mentioned in the text of Plan 2040 once. She 
was not satisfied that it was just mentioned in the appendix.  
 
McCullough said page 58, Chapter 6, Natural Resources, Goal 3, talks about air quality. He said it 
speaks to land use regulations and incentives to reduce greenhouse gases.  
 
Commissioner Willey said she was comfortable with the language in the plan knowing there would 
be more work in the future. 
 
Planning Commission discussed Goal 5, Small Neighborhood Commercial. 
 
Commissioner Willey suggested the following wording on page 27, Chapter 2, Goal 5: 
5.7 ‘Encourage neighborhood-scale commercial uses to be integrated into residential areas.’ 
 
Commissioner Struckhoff wondered whether they should discuss retail development along the 
southern area of town.  
 
McCullough said the area is part of the revised Southern Development Plan which would be 
incorporated by reference in the comprehensive plan. He said the map was intended to be higher 
level and the sector plans were more refined. He said the plan calls out auto related commercial 
retail.  
 
Commissioner Struckhoff suggested the adoption of the plan run concurrently with the sector plan. 
 
Commissioner Willey suggested changing a word on page 28, Goal 5, Downtown Lawrence: 
5.20 ‘Incorporate existing structures and architecture when possible, and match complement the 
design, massing, placement and other site design elements of the surrounding area to preserve the 
existing development context.’ 
 
Commissioner Willey suggested the following change on page 31, Chapter 2, Goal 1: 
1.9 ‘If adjacent to Lawrence, annexation shall occur prior to the submission of or concurrent with a 
development proposal.’ 
 
Commissioner Willey suggested the following addition on page 33, Chapter 2, Goal 4: 
4.3 ‘Locate higher-intensity users and activities together in an industrial park when feasible.’ 
 
Commissioner Carttar suggested that the maps on pages 29 and 34 include legends for what the 
dots represent in printed form. 
 
Crick said it was to encourage people to get into the map to look at the details. He said the steering 
committee wanted the interactive maps.  
 
Planning Commission switched their discussion to Chapter 3, Lawrence Neighborhoods & Housing. 
 

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/


PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 6 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

Commissioner Ashworth suggested adding the following to page 38, Goal 1: 
1.7 ‘Integrate public transportation throughout neighborhoods to ease traffic and parking 
congestion.’ 
 
Commissioner Willey suggested the following change to page 39, Goal 2: 
2.4 ‘Clearly define neighborhood edges by either natural or constructed man made features.’ 
 
Commissioner Carpenter suggested adding the following change on page 40, Goal 4:   
4.10 ‘Work with neighborhoods to create, update, and maintain Specific Land Use Plans as 
appropriate.’ 
 
Commissioner Carttar said he would like to see the definitions of aging in place, human scale, and 
universal design added to the side bar.  
 
Commissioner Carttar said the words ‘unmistakably Lawrence’ on page 40 felt like a trademark. He 
said like other words could communicate the same thing. 
 
Commissioner Willey suggested striking ‘unmistakably Lawrence’ from page 40, Goal 4: 
4.1 ‘Create a places to allow neighborhood residents to gather ensuring that future neighborhoods 
are unmistakably Lawrence connected to each other and the larger community.’ 
 
Crick said the steering committee’s intent was that there was nothing in Lawrence that made 
neighborhoods in West Lawrence feel like a part of the community.  
 
Commissioner Carttar suggested the following change on page 40, Goal 4:  
4.9 ‘Incorporate public health planning into land use planning. Account for the impact of land use 
planning on public health.’ 
 
Commissioner Struckhoff suggested the following change on page 40, Goal 4: 
4.11 ‘Plan for, develop, and incorporate an evolving multi-modal transportation system.’ 
 
Commissioner Carpenter asked staff to consider wordsmithing Goal 6.1 on page 41.  
 
Commissioner Sinclair and Struckhoff suggested the following language on page 41, Goal 6: 
6.2 ‘Encourage developments to account for consideration of all income ranges when creating new 
developments and subdivisions.’ 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/


PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 7 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

PC Minutes 4/22/19 
ITEM NO.  3 PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR NORTH LAWRENCE RIVERFRONT ADDITION; 

N 2ND ST (SLD) 
 
PP-18-00504: Consider a two-lot Preliminary Plat for North Lawrence Riverfront Addition, located 
at 311, 317, 401, 409, 415, 501, & 505 N 2nd St for mixed use development including residential and 
commercial uses. Variances related to block length and right-of-way dedication for N. 2nd Street as a 
principal arterial. Submitted by Paul Werner Architects on behalf of Abfield Investments LLC, City of 
Lawrence, Douglas County Kaw Drainage District, D&D Rentals of Lawrence LLC, Exchange Holdings 
LLC, HDD of Lawrence LLC, Kaw River Estates LLC, Patience LLC, Loosehead Investments LLC, and 
Riverfront Properties of Lawrence LLC, property owners of record. 
 
 
Item No. 3 was deferred prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MISCELLANEOUS NEW OR OLD BUSINESS 
Consideration of any other business to come before the Commission. 
 
 
 
Recess at 9:43pm until 6:30pm on April 24, 2019 
 
 

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/


PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 8 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

 
PC Minutes 4/24/19  
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Reconvene April 24, 2019 – 6:30 p.m. 
 
Commissioners present: Ashworth, Butler, Carpenter, Carttar, Paden, Sands, Sinclair, Struckhoff, 
Weaver, Willey 
Staff present: McCullough, Crick, Ewert, Larkin, Mortinger 
______________________________________________________________________ 
BEGIN PUBLIC HEARING (APRIL 24, 2019): 
 
 
EX PARTE / ABSTENTIONS / DEFERRAL REQUEST 

• Ex parte: 
Commissioner Carttar said he spoke with Mary Frances Ellis and Paul Carter about history and 
context of short-term rentals. 
 
Commissioner Willey said she spoke with Jeff Hill, Vice-President of Mid-America Bank, about 
mortgage lending and affordable housing and how it might impact the discussion on short-
term rentals. She said she spoke with Derek Felch, General Manager of Hampton Inn, who 
was not especially worried about short-term rentals and felt the number in Lawrence was not 
detrimental to the hotel use. She said she spoke with City Commissioner Stuart Boley who 
stressed the current non-compliance of the applicants for short-term rentals. She said she 
spoke with Mayor Lisa Larsen who urged Planning Commission to keep affordable housing in 
the discussion about short-term rentals.  
 

• No abstentions. 
 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
No general public comment. 
 

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/


PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 9 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

PC Minutes 4/24/19 
ITEM NO.  4 SHORT-TERM RENTAL 
 
Discussion on short-term rental program. 
 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Jeff Crick presented the item. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Tena Santaularia said short-term rental landlords are in the properties once or twice a week cleaning 
and checking property. She said with her long-term properties sometimes she doesn’t have the 
opportunity to clean and fix them up for many years, when renters move out. She felt short-term 
rentals were somewhat self-regulated by guest reviews and having to meet high standards in order 
to stay in business. She said parking with short-term rentals was different because guests usually 
only have one vehicle.  
 
Michael Davidson, Explore Lawrence, said he subscribes to a monthly report of data from Airbnb. He 
said year-to-date Airbnb revenue was up about 35% over the same period last year. He said one 
million dollars worth of revenue equated to about $60,000 transient guest tax for Lawrence last 
year. He said hotels had additional pressure than Airbnb. He said Lawrence opened three new hotels 
which generated 100,000 more room nights in town. He said in 2018 only 270,000 rooms were sold. 
He said hotels were having issues of overbuilding and that year-to-date hotels decreased 6.4% in 
revenue. He said as of March 2019 there were 192 active Airbnb properties in Douglas County. 
 
Jeremy Furse said if his property wasn’t a short-term rental it would be vacant. He said he did not 
want someone living above his retail space on a permanent basis even though he could probably 
make more money doing so. He said he was in the unit at least three days a week cleaning and 
taking care of it. He felt short-term rentals should be allowed anywhere rentals were allowed. He 
said his guests were spending money downtown and felt it was a win-win for the city. 
 
Paul Carttar disclosed he was the sibling of Planning Commissioner David Carttar. He said he was 
opposed to non-owner occupied short-term rentals in certain neighborhoods and how they could 
impact neighbors. He said most of his neighborhood was rental property and he was concerned 
about them all becoming short-term rentals. He felt short-term rentals would have a detrimental 
effect on the neighborhood.  
 
Ken Easthouse said he had no issue with owner occupied short-term rentals. He said the non-owner 
occupied short-term rentals were the issue. He said they were primarily in areas of town where 
affordable housing was most needed.  
 
Courtney Shipley, Lawrence Association of Neighborhoods (LAN), said LAN was happy with the policy 
that had been approved. She was surprised the brakes were put on the program so quickly because 
it seemed the process was working well. She said the most important issue LAN was concerned 
about was affordable housing. She said she was glad the people who had gone through the process 
already had been so responsive and responsible.  
 
Leda Sedlock said her short-term rental guests, on average, stay about 8 days a month, mostly 
on weekends. She said guests typically stay 2-3 nights. She said a search on Airbnb for non-
owner occupied homes in Lawrence will only have 5-star properties because those are the only 

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/


PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 10 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

ones that survive. She said Lawrence was not in a rental housing crisis and that there was a 
perception that non-owner-occupied-short-term rentals deplete affordable housing stocks. 
 
Tim Hamilton did not believe short-term rentals would impact affordable housing significantly 
because someone who would otherwise offer low-income housing would have to want to convert 
their property to a short-term rental. He said the poverty threshold in the United States for a single 
person was $12,000 a year and $25,000 for a family of four. He said that would be $600 a month for 
a single person and $750 a month for a family. He said those earnings were not in the same market 
as short-term rental. He said regarding possible increased property taxes, he pays about $100 a 
month in property taxes on his 2-bedroom short-term rental. He said if the property tax increased to 
25% it would raise his monthly property tax to $250 a month. He said he would have to increase his 
rent cost to make up the difference.  
 
Kathy Bruner felt short-term rentals were the best experience when traveling and she hoped to 
operate one someday. She said her long-term rentals were never looked at.  
 
Aaron Geier spoke in favor of short-term rentals. He said his property would be empty if not for 
Airbnb. He said he checks the property regularly. He said his guests shop downtown when they stay 
at his property.  
 
Kit Grove echoed comments in favor of short-term rental. He said his wife operated an Airbnb and 
he stayed in them frequently when traveling. He did not feel short-term rentals would drive the price 
of housing up.  
 
COMMISSION DISCUSSION 
Topic: 
18. Revise the special use permit application to seek information regarding the platforms utilized by 
the applicant and the listing numbers to view info on user comments if the short-term rental is 
currently operating in violation of the code. 
 
Commissioner Sands felt it was helpful to see reviews of those operating a short-term rental. 
 
Commissioner Willey said the Special Use Permit would run with the property so reviews would only 
apply to the operator of the property. 
 
Commissioner Carpenter said Airbnb was the only platform that had an agreement with the State of 
Kansas to collect taxes. He said a registration number would be helpful in determining how long in 
operation. He said reviews could also indicate how many people were staying at the house.  
 
Commissioner Butler said taxes were not the purview of Planning Commission. 
 
Commissioner Carpenter felt the information should still be included.  
 
Commissioner Butler said she was not that concerned with reviews because guests look at properties 
and read reviews before deciding where to stay. She said the short-term rentals would not survive if 
they weren’t well taken care of. 
 
Commissioner Carttar asked for clarification on what Planning Commission’s objective was. 
 

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/


PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 11 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

McCullough said the program began in November, 2018. He said many operators were operating not 
in compliance with the Code so a program was built to give them a path for compliance. He said the 
non-owner occupied short-term rental Special Use Permit process required a hearing at Planning 
Commission and a final determination at City Commission. He said as the Special Use Permit 
applications started to be reviewed some issues revealed themselves, mostly neighborhood issues. 
He stated three applications had been approved, one denied, and three deferred. He said City 
Commissioner Boley had specific questions at the time of the three deferrals. 
 
McCullough said Planning Commission was grappling with how to review these unique land uses. He 
said Planning Commission could discuss revisions they would suggest to City Commission. He said 
some topics may not be in the purview of Planning Commission but the intent was to place all the 
questions in the memo for their comment. He said the hope was to gain framework on whether the 
program should change and what that should look like, and if there should be better parameters to 
judge short-term rentals. 
 
Commissioner Willey said she agreed with Commissioner Butler that the reviews were not helpful. 
 
Commissioner Carttar said his primary issue was the enforceability of the short-term rentals. He felt 
it made sense for every single platform to be listed, however there needed to be a mechanism to be 
amended.  
 
Commissioner Carpenter said reviews were helpful. 
 
Struckhoff said a link to reviews and platforms would be sufficient. 
 
McCullough said technically there should be no information to review since operators should not be 
operating short-term rentals without a license.  
 
Commissioner Weaver expressed concern about looking at reviews and denying a Special Use Permit 
based on a negative review and approving another with two negative reviews, for example.  
 
Commissioner Sands felt negative reviews could give a sense of how a property was being taken 
care of. 
 
Commissioner Carttar felt Special Use Permit applications should include the platforms advertised on.  
 
Answer: 
The Planning Commission believes that the City should seek this information and the Planning 
Commission can determine how to evaluate this information as part of the application packet. They 
also believe the City of Lawrence should be made aware of the platforms and links applicants are 
operating under and provided by the applicants. 
 
Topic: 
19. Include rental map snapshot in every packet – long and short-term. 
 
McCullough asked Planning Commission if they would like to see a static map or an updated link. 
 
Commissioner Paden said she would like to see how non-owner occupied versus owner occupied was 
impacting neighborhoods.  

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/


PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 12 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

 
Commissioner Sands asked Michael Davidson to speak to the data he receives from Airbnb. He felt it 
could be helpful for the City to subscribe. 
 
Davidson said the data changes daily.  
 
McCullough said the City had methods of finding short-term rentals. He said staff appreciates Explore 
Lawrence sharing the Airbnb data.  
 
Commissioner Willey said she was comfortable with the City map and the City obtaining the data in 
whatever means they want. She said she would like to see the map included in the packet. 
 
Commissioner Struckhoff said he would like to see a static map with a link. 
 
Commissioner Ashworth said she was not comfortable capping the number of short-term rentals in a 
neighborhood for no other reason than too many in a block.  
 
McCullough said those element examples would rise to a program level recommendation.  
 
Answer: 
The Planning Commission would like to strive to differentiate between owner-occupied and non-
owner occupied short-term rental properties on the residential rental license map. The Commission 
would also like the link to the online map and a static version of that map included as part of their 
packet materials. 
 
Topic: 
20. Explore requiring the city’s occupancy limit to be included in offerings on software platforms as a 
condition of any approved special use permit. 
 
Commissioner Willey wondered if all platforms included occupancy. 
 
McCullough said he was not sure. 
 
Commissioner Carpenter said one of the applicants had it on their site. He said it could be part of the 
licensing process.  
 
McCullough said staff could figure out what method was best to require that. 
 
Answer:  
The Planning Commission would recommend that occupancy limits, number of permitted guest 
rooms, and the number of parking spaces should be provided on the online listing for the properties. 
 
Topic: 
21. Require contact info to be shared with neighbors. 
 
Commissioner Willey wondered if property owners could post their contact information on-site and 
the number for enforcement. 
 
Commissioner Sands suggested possibly a sticker or plaque on-site with a contact number. 

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/


PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 13 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

 
Commissioner Sinclair felt it was a good idea to provide contact information and that it made more 
sense to include it in mailed notice to the neighbors.  
 
McCullough said in practice the City typically gets the enforcement call and has the contact 
information. 
 
Commissioner Carpenter said the mailed notice provided contact information. 
 
Commissioner Willey asked applicants to provide thoughts. 
 
Sedlock said she had no issue posting her contact information on her property.  
 
Santaularia said all of her contact information was transparent and available. She said she had no 
issue with posting her contact information. She said it was already on the listing for the guest to call. 
 
Furse said a plaque on the exterior may invite theft by advertising the property was vacant. 
 
Commissioner Carttar felt neighbors should be notified with renewal of the annual license.  
 
McCullough said owner information was included on the map.  
 
Commissioner Carpenter said the renewal of license should include a letter with contact information.  
 
Answer: 
The Planning Commission recommended requiring notice to neighboring property owners with each 
license renewal, if not already required by ordinance that includes a contact for the operator. They 
also believe it is the purview of the operator to display any additional contact information on the 
premises as they believe is reasonable. 
 
It was noted at the meeting that an applicant’s contact information is provided on the notice letter 
for the owner-occupied short-term rental. Such a letter is not required for non-owner occupied short-
term rentals given the special use permit public hearing process. 
 
Topic: 
22. Should there be time limits on special use permits, or does license present an opportunity to 
revoke, or can a special use permit expire when owner changes? 
 
Commissioner Paden felt a property was more likely to continue as a short-term rental when sold if 
the license goes with the property. She wondered if the license could be renewed if the property 
sold. 
 
Randy Larkin said a Special Use Permit, just like zoning, runs with the land. He said if the program is 
changed it could be a license of some sort.  
 
Commissioner Carpenter said one option could be to set time limits for review.  
 

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/


PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 14 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

McCullough said they would want to be consistent through the program and not case by case. He 
said the Special Use Permits have a condition that if left vacant for 12 months the Special Use Permit 
expires.  
 
Commissioner Carttar asked about the terms of license renewal.  
 
McCullough said there were some violations of the license. He said big items for revoking a Special 
Use Permit would revolve around renting out more guest rooms than allowed, using more parking, 
and allowing more unrelated occupants. He said there was a lot of due process to get a Special Use 
Permit and quite a bit of due process to revoke a Special Use Permit. 
 
Commissioner Carttar asked if complaints to the City were considered when a license was renewed. 
 
McCullough said not necessarily. He said complaints were investigated to see if there was a 
legitimate violation of the Code. He said staff inspects short-term rentals annually for life safety 
issues, which was more frequently than long-term rentals. 
 
Commissioner Sands did not feel it was inappropriate to ask for a 3 year Special Use Permit. He said 
in other communities short-term rentals get gobbled up by property maintenance companies. He 
referenced several articles regarding affordable housing being impacted by short-term rentals. 
 
Commissioner Paden wanted to prevent corporate takeover. She said if Special Use Permits required 
a 3 year renewal the applicant would have to pay the fee again. 
 
McCullough said that was correct.   
 
Commissioner Willey felt that was a burden on the property owner.  
 
McCullough said the fees were adopted by City Commission and could be a program change. 
 
Commissioner Willey expressed concerns with corporate takeover.  
 
Commissioner Sands referenced the following article about the City of Nashville phasing out non-
owner occupied short-term rentals: 
https://www.avalara.com/mylodgetax/en/blog/2018/02/nashville-votes-to-phase-out-non-owner-
occupied-short-term-rentals.html 
 
Answer: 
Planning Commission noted concern for license renewal if code violations were found during any one 
year. They also noted a concern for large-scale operators to become dominant in the market forcing 
out smaller, local operators. The Planning Commission also noted that additional application fees 
were a concern when setting expiration dates for special use permits. The Planning Commission does 
not recommend changes to the program in this regard at this time. 
 
Topic: 
23. Should there be a limit on guestrooms permitted and should that limit be tied to occupancy 
limits? 
 
Answer: 

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/
https://www.avalara.com/mylodgetax/en/blog/2018/02/nashville-votes-to-phase-out-non-owner-occupied-short-term-rentals.html
https://www.avalara.com/mylodgetax/en/blog/2018/02/nashville-votes-to-phase-out-non-owner-occupied-short-term-rentals.html


PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 15 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

The Planning Commission believes that the parking standards and the occupancy limits in the Land 
Development Code presently helps regulate the number of guestrooms. 
 
Topic: 
24. What are the minimum infrastructure requirements to be present for a short-term rental use? 
 
Commissioner Willey felt if it was appropriate for neighborhoods it was appropriate for short-term 
rentals and long-term rentals. 
 
Answer: 
The Planning Commission believes that if the infrastructure is sufficient in providing for the needs of 
owners and long-term rental occupancy then it is also sufficient for short-term rentals. 
 
Topic: 
25. How does the short-term rental use affect traffic in a neighborhood? 
 
Answer: 
The Planning Commission is of the opinion that beyond an extenuating circumstance, a short-term 
rental would generate less traffic than an owner-occupied/long-term rental; therefore, the presence 
of a short-term rental does not present traffic issues. 
 
Topic: 
26. Should neighborhood support be required to gain approval of a special use permit? 
 
Commissioner Carttar felt it may be difficult to try and impose that kind of requirement. He felt 
having the City Commission require a super-majority vote with a protest petition was about as close 
as a requirement that could be imposed. He said most neighbors were not aware a protest petition 
was a possibility.  
 
McCullough said staff are not shy about talking to neighbors about the process.  
 
Commissioner Willey said Planning Commission typically does not operate by having neighborhood 
support required. She said Planning Commission weighs the opinions of the neighborhood, among 
other factors. 
 
Commissioner Carpenter felt it could be problematic for one type of Special Use Permit to require 
neighborhood support. 
 
Commissioner Struckhoff strongly encouraged community involvement.  
 
Answer: 
Planning Commission finds that the protest petition provides weight to neighbors on an application.  
Gaining support of a neighborhood is always factored in to a special use permit application analysis, 
but would not automatically compel a denial recommendation by the Planning Commission.  
Opposition must be weighed against all of the Golden Factors as with any special use permit 
application. 
 
Topic: 
27. How does the short-term rental use impact affordable housing? 

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/


PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 16 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

 
Commissioner Carttar suggested the topic be revisited by Planning on a regular basis since it was 
new.  
 
Commissioner Ashworth wondered how many current short-term rentals in progress would qualify as 
affordable housing. 
 
McCullough said that analysis had not been looked at.  
 
Commissioner Ashworth referenced an article about an increase in rental rates due to short-term 
rentals.  
 
McCullough said there were much bigger forces impacting affordable housing.  
 
Answer: 
The Planning Commission does have a concern with the saturation of neighborhoods by short-term 
rentals and the possible displacement of families and those effects on neighborhood schools.  
However, it is too early to determine the full effects of this particular use due to the use being of a 
small scale at this time. More time is needed to see how many short-term rentals will be licensed to 
fully and adequately gauge these effects. 
 
Topic: 
28. What is the date of construction for the properties licensed as short-term rentals? 
 
Answer: 
This information was provided in the staff memo as part of the agenda packet. The Planning 
Commission did not comment on this topic. 
 
City Commissioner Boley Questions: 
1. What is the tax assessment for this property, by taxing jurisdiction and the total? 
 
2. What would the tax assessment for this property be, by taxing jurisdiction and the total, if the 
property were taxed at the commercial rate applied to hotels? 
 
3. Please compute the difference between the figures, by taxing jurisdiction and the total. 
 
 
Crick said taxes were a function handled by the County Appraisers Office. He said the Planning office 
and Planning Commission did not really have a role in taxation.  
 
McCullough said City Commission was asking the question for their analysis. He said the typical 
short-term rental was being taxed at a residential rate.  
 
Answer: 
The Planning Commission determined this to be outside of their review purview. 
 
City Commissioner Boley Question: 
4. Is it possible to add a condition to the special use permit that would require the owner to remit 
the difference to the city annually? 

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/


PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 17 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

 
Answer: 
The Planning Commission determined this to be outside of their review purview. 
 
City Commissioner Boley Question: 
5. Is it possible that a future property valuation will be done on the basis of an income generating 
property rather than a residence? 
 
Answer: 
The Planning Commission determined this to be outside of their review purview. 
 
City Commissioner Boley Question: 
6. If so, is it possible that a higher valuation will be imposed upon adjacent properties? 
 
Answer: 
The Planning Commission determined this to be outside of their review purview. 
 
City Commissioner Boley Question: 
7. What is the length of the street frontage for each of the properties? 
 
Answer: 
The Planning Commission reviewed this as being related to Topic 24 and responded with that topic. 
 
City Commissioner Boley Question: 
8. What is the length of the street frontage for the Hampton Inn and how many guest rooms is that 
property authorized? 
 
Answer: 
The Planning Commission reviewed this as being related to Topic 24 and responded with that topic. 
 
City Commissioner Boley Question: 
9. What is the category of the street in front of each of the properties? 
 
Answer: 
The Planning Commission reviewed this as being related to Topic 24 and responded with that topic. 
 
City Commissioner Boley Question: 
10. What is the category of the street in front of the Hampton Inn? 
 
Answer: 
The Planning Commission reviewed this as being related to Topic 24 and responded with that topic. 
 
City Commissioner Boley Question: 
11. Is it possible to add a condition that would limit the term of the special use permit to 3 years, as 
we did with the DARE Center? 
 
Answer: 
The Planning Commission addressed this topic with Topic 22 above. 
 

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/


PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 18 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

City Commissioner Boley Question: 
12. Once an SUP is approved is there any restriction upon the transfer of the special use permit 
along with the property? 
 
Answer: 
The Planning Commission addressed this topic with Topic 22 above. 
 
City Commissioner Boley Question: 
13. If there are no restrictions [on transferring the special use permit to another operator], why 
should any consideration be given to the history of prior use as a short-term rental by the Planning 
Commission or City Commission when deciding whether to grant a special use permit? 
 
Answer: 
The Planning Commission believed the history might be helpful in providing context to an 
application, but also believed that such information would be evaluated on a case-by-case basis with 
each application. 
 
City Commissioner Boley Question: 
14. Please provide the pictures the commission was shown of the mobile home placed upon the lot 
across the street from Dr. Venida Chenault's house, as we considered the non-compliant use of that 
property. 
 
Answer: 
The Planning Commission was not sure of the intent of this question, but did have concern for 
renewing a short-term rental license that had a history of violations. 
 
City Commissioner Boley Question: 
15. When was the mobile home placed upon the property? 
 
Answer: 
The Planning Commission was not sure of the intent of this question, but did have concern for 
renewing a short-term rental license that had a history of violations. 
 
City Commissioner Boley Question: 
16. When was the first complaint received about the mobile home? 
 
Answer: 
The Planning Commission was not sure of the intent of this question, but did have concern for 
renewing a short-term rental license that had a history of violations. 
 
City Commissioner Boley Question: 
17. How many days later was the mobile home removed from the property? 
 
Answer:   
The Planning Commission was not sure of the intent of this question, but did have concern for 
renewing a short-term rental license that had a history of violations. 
 
Commissioner Ashworth talked about articles she has read about other cities capping the number of 
short-term rentals that individuals/companies own. She said some communities take a percentage of 

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/


PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 19 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

the fees and taxes and apply it toward affordable housing trust funds. She said another mechanism 
for limiting corporate ownership was to limit the number of nights a unit could be rented.  
 
 
NO ACTION TAKEN 
 

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/


PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 20 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

PC Minutes 4/24/19 
ITEM NO.  5 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2040 
 
Continue discussion regarding the Comprehensive Plan 2040 for unincorporated Douglas County and 
the city of Lawrence. Topic discussion will include Economic Development and Transportation.  
 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Jessica Mortinger presented the topic of Transportation.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Michael Almon felt the definition of the gateway should be revised. He felt the community benefit 
should be required in Chapter 2. He said he supported language in Section 6.1.8 ‘Prohibit 
development in newly annexed floodplains and prime agricultural soils.’  He said there were ongoing 
infrastructure costs funded by tax payers due to sprawl. He felt the community benefits would help 
offset the additional community costs. He said there were already areas where infrastructure was 
being used as justification for further industrialization, development, and commercialization, 
particularly south of K-10 on Highway 59.  
 
COMMISSION DISCUSSION 
Commissioner Willey suggested having a definition of Complete Street Policies in the sidebar of page 
45, Chapter 4, Transportation.  
 
Commissioner Willey suggested adding language to Chapter 4, Goal 2, regarding the efficient 
movement of people and goods.  
 
McCullough said language could be added to Goal 2.4 regarding residents and the movement of 
goods. 
 
Commissioner Willey suggested adding language to page 46, Goal 3: ‘While moving people and 
goods is one of the paramount concerns of a transportation network, the safety and secur i ty of 
the people using it is one of the overarching concerns for all aspects.’ 
 
Commissioner Willey suggested the following language addition on page 47, Goal 4.2: 
‘Reduce single occupancy vehicle trips through Travel Demand Management, multi-modal site 
design, policies, programs, and partnerships with employment centers.’ 
 
Commissioner Willey suggested additional language to the vision statement on page 50, Chapter 5, 
Economic Development: 
‘Create a diverse range of employment opportunities by capitalizing on our highly-educated 
workforce, attracting new employers, encouraging and supporting entrepreneurs, retaining and 
growing existing business, and maximizing our potential through innovative technology sectors.’ 
 
Commissioner Willey suggested the following for Goal 1 on page 50, Chapter 5: 
1.4 ‘Capitalize on local resources, such as the University of Kansas Small Business Development 
Center, Lawrence Metro E-Community, and the Bioscience and Technology Business Center at the 
University of Kansas, to help nurture and attract small and start-up businesses.’ 
1.5 ‘Target Attract career business attraction by building on the existing economic and educational 
assets of Douglas County.’ 
1.6 ‘Monitor new and developing industries for their potential to add to our economic base.’ 

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/


PC Action Summary  
 April 22 & 24, 2019 

Page 21 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/ 

1.7 ‘Encourage and support diversifying the agricultural economy.’ 
 
Commissioner Carpenter expressed his desire for increased wages and felt bigger discussions 
needed to happen. 
 
Commissioner Willey suggested the following language change for Goal 2, Chapter 5: 
‘Encouraging discussions collaborations with local colleges and schools, employers, and our 
community’s workers helps continue workforce retention and development for future 
economic development.’ 
 
Planning Commission encouraged adding a sidebar in Chapter 5, Economic Development, for the 
definition of quality jobs. 
 
Commissioner Willey suggested Goal 3, page 51, Chapter 5, be broken into two goals and group the 
similar ones together. She felt goals 3.1, 3.4, & 3.5 should be one group and 3.2, 3.3, & 3.6 be a 
second group.  
 
Commissioner Ashworth suggested language for Goal 4, Chapter 5:  
4.5 ‘Support Create and promote incentives for businesses transitioning to new green 
environmentally sustainable practices.’ 
4.6 ‘Develop policies to support and encourage new farmers.’ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MISCELLANEOUS NEW OR OLD BUSINESS 
Consideration of any other business to come before the Commission. 
 
 
 
ADJOURN 10:57pm 
 
 

https://lawrenceks.org/boards/lawrence-douglas-county-metropolitan-planning-commission/

	PC Minutes 4/22/19

